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ECTOR’S ORT

To,
The Members,
Kichtha Sugar Company Limited

Your directors are pleased in presenting their 52 Directors Report on the business and operations
of your Company together with the Audited Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account, Cash Flow
statement and the Auditors’ Report of your Company for the financial year ended, 31stMarch, 2024.

The summarized financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2024, are as under: -

FINANCIAL SUMMA STANDALONE
PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
(2023-24) (in Lacs) (2022-23) (in Lacs)
Total Revenue 16505.95 17075.40
Total Expenses excluding Depreciation 19859.94 22112.71
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation & Tax {3353.99) (5037.31)
Less:- Depreciation 74.70 34.32
Profit/ (Loss) after Depreciation (3428.69) (5071.63)
Less: i) Exceptional items 55.85 100.69
ii) Extraordinary items 3800.00 3639.79
Profit/(Loss) before tax 427.16 (1331.15)

INDUSTRY SCENARIO AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
The performance of your Company during F.Y 2023-24 is given above. The financials incorporate the
revenues generated by the sale of products.

The Company has closed its books of Accounts for the financial year ended 31st of March, 2024, with
a profit/Loss of Rs. 427.16 Lacs (Four Hundred Twenty Seven Lakh Sixteen Thousand only) as
compared to the Loss of Rs. 1331.15 Lacs (One Thousand Three Hundred Thirty One Lacs and
Fifteen Thousand only) for the year ended 31st of March, 2023,

Your Company is involved in the business of manufacturing and trading of Sugar and its by-products
like molasses, bagasse, press-muds etc.

The Board of Directors has put in lots of efforts on minimizing costs & expenses and trying their best
to run the mill at their higher capacity. Your directors are determined to achieve the organizational
goals and are continuously striving hard to explore different avenues of further growth for the
company. Your directors expect to achieve good results in the coming future.

Your directors are continuously looking for avenues for future growth of the Company, which is
promising and has vast potential.
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IN THE NATURE

USINESS

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the financial year.

OPERATIN Ts
Comparative operating results for the [ast 10 seasons are given below:

Season Duration Cane Total Sugar | Pol % | Average Sugar
(gross crushed | Production Sugar losses %
days) (tac qtl) | (in qtl} recovery cane

cane(%)

2013-14 104 31.80 280480 10.74 8.64 2.11

2014-15 113 36.59 341320 11.29 9.24 2.06

2015-16 101 31.30 303730 11.69 9.63 2.07

2016-17 104 32.47 325150 11.96 9.93 2.03

2017-18 141 44.21 454053 12.33 10.22 2.11

2018-19 144 41.49 443425 12.74 10.70 2.04

2015-20 159 45.59 478283 12.63 10.49 2.15

2020-21 143 39.73 426490 12.74 10.73 2.02

2021-22 131 39.17 405761 12.29 10.36 1.94

2022-23 130 41.90 434387 12.44 10.37 2.07

2023-24 101 30.08 325659 12.87 10.82 2.05

Season Total Hrs. | Cane Cane crushed | Cane crushed in | Capacity
lost % | crushing in|in 24 Hrs. |22 Hrs. | utilization
available |24 hrs. | excluding excluding %

including stoppage stoppage (Qtl}
stoppage (Qth)
(qth)

2013-14 11.72 30750 34834 31932 76.88

2014-15 7.00 32385 34980 32101 81.32

2015-16 8.70 30991 33886 31062 78.80

2016-17 8.03 31221 33823 31004 79.51

2017-18 9.85 31354 35042 32122 78.95

2018-19 15.60 28810 34286 31428 72.03

2019-20 20.19 28957 36280 33256 72.39

2020-21 16.20 28025 33443 30656 70.06

2021-22 15.25 30309 35762 32782 74.76

2022-23 10.44 32339 36113 33104 80.84

2023-24 14.20 30015 34982 32065 75.04




CANE MANAGEMENT
Daily crushing capacity of your mill is 4000 TCD/Actual 3600 TCD for which 45 lac qtls. sugarcane is

required, while 30.09 fac qtls. cane was received during the crushing season 2023-24. We expect that
36lac qtlssugarcane will be available in the next crushing season 2024-25, our plan to cover the
shortage of cane, by promoting cane development and extra Satta plan in the reserved area of the
rill. Cane Growers who are engaged in farming but not member of Cane Society, are being made
member.

CANE DEVELOPMENT

Keeping in view the betterment of cane growers of reserved areas, your Company has always been
contributing to the plans of cane development initiated by the Cane Deptt. of State Government.
Early & developed variety of cane is being increased.

In relation to this, your factory has contributed in following Cane Development Plans: -

A. REPLACEMENT OF CANE SEED VARIETY:

1. Under varietal replacement, during winter & summer sowing early variety cane is used.

2. 100% transportation charges are born by the Company on cane seed procured from Cane seed
research centers,

3. 15% Subsidy is being paid by the Company on pesticides used for cane crop seed & land
treatment.

4. Cane Seed transported from ‘Karnal’ (Haryana) and ‘Faridkot’ (Punjab) out of State where Cane
Research Centre are established & best quality of cane seed is being distributed to growers
through the Cane Development Council.

5. Rate difference of cane seed from Research Centre & cane price declared by the Govt., is born by
the factory.

6. The facility of Press mud is extended to cane growers on concessional rates.

7. Special incentive on cane sowing: -An incentive in the form of internal transportation charges is
provided to cane growers to increase Early Variety Cane sowing for sowing of Early Variety of
cane ie, COJ 85, CO 0239, 0118, 15023, C0S-13235, COLK 14201, COPb-96, COLK-15201, COS-
17235.

8. Soil Testing facility is being made available to the growers with the help of Cane Development
Council.

B. The cane growers are being initiated for using of Trench system, cane sowing at a distance of 4-5’
for achieving better farming activities, Excess production per Hect. & Better recovery percentage.
Under this system, enough cane sowing is made during the last year & a plan is being made about
sowing of cane in most of the agricultural area by adopting this system.

C. ESTABLI NT OF SEED F T FACT E:
A small farm of 12.000 Hect. in mill campus has been developed to multiply the approved varieties of
cane brought from Cane Research Centres. During the year, Co- 15023varietyis sowed in the Farm.

Qur plan is to produce & distribute the following early variety cane seeds to the cane growers:-

Co. P.B. 96, 98, Co. 118, 239, 12029, 13035, 15023, Co. L.K. 11203, 14201 and Cos. 13235, CoLK
1520, Cos 17231, CoP 12221, 12226, 13224.

D. Seed Treatment Plant is being setup and functioning properly,

DIVIDEND

The directors feel regret to report that, due to accumulated losses your directors do not recommend
any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

APITAL STRUCTURE
During the year under review there has been no changes in the share capital of the company.
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Authoriz are Capital:

Authorized Share Capital of your Company remained Rs. 2030.00 Lacs comprising of 3000-9% (Free
of Company’s Tax but subject to deduction of Tax at source) redeemable cumulative Preference
Shares of the face value of Rs. 1000/- each and 20,00,000 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 100/-
each.

Issued Share Capital:
Issued Share Capital of your Company remained Rs. 18,40,63,500& divided into 18,40,635 Equity

Shares of face value of Rs. 100/- each.

scribed Share ital;
Subscribed Share Capital of your Company remained Rs. 17,99,04,200/- and divided into 17,99,042
Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 100/- each.

Pajd up Share Capital:
Paid up share capital of your Company also remained Rs. 17,98,64,300/- and divided into 17,98,643

Equity Share of face value of Rs. 100/- each.

During the Financial Year, 97.49% of Share Capital of your company continued to be held by Hon'ble
Governor of Uttarakhand. As such, the Company continued to be a Government Company within the
meaning of Section 394 of The Companies Act, 2013.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Your factory has adequate environmental protection arrangement. According to norms of
Environment Control Board, we have installed Wet Scrubber, Tertiary Treatment Plant & online
monitoring system with the Govt. financial assistance of Rs. 12.09 Lakh. The system successfully
operated during the crushing season 2017-18 to 2023-24.

Factory is running in such a manner that no noise arises of such a nature which adversely affect
inside the factory & also factory cotony or public life.

RI FORMA CT, 200

Provision of RTI Act is being followed by the Company. During the year under review, Company has
received applications under RTI Act and all applications received, have been disposed off as at
31.03.2023.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
During the year 2023-2024, relations between management & workers remained cordial and
harmonious, resulting in successful completion of crushing season.

ORS AND NAGERI NNEL
The day-to-day management of the Company is entrusted to its key managerial personnel who
operate under the superintendence, direction and control of the Board. The Board reviews and
approves strategy and overseas the actions and performance of the Management to ensure that the
long-term objective of enhancing stakeholder’s value is met.
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Your Company’s Board comprises of the following Directors and KMP's:

S.No, Name Designation DIN / PAN
1. Shri Vijay Kumar Yadav Chairman 09462188
2. Shri Uday Raj Singh Nominee Director 07205715
3. Shri Trilok Singh Whole- Time Director 09311718

{Executive Director)

4, Shri Dev Vrat Rana Independent Director (32910081
5. Shri Dharmendra Singh Independent Director 10085124
6.} Shri Sanjay Kumar Pandey Chief Financial Officer AUSPP4490R
7. Shri Harsh Tiwari Company Secretary ARHPTS5411A

Following changes have occurred during the Financial year 2023-2024 in Board of Directors and
KMP’s : -

Cessation of Shri. Uday Raj Singh, Nominee Director w.e.f. 29/06/2023
Appointment of Mr, Meharban Singh Bisht, Nominee Director w.e.f. 05/07/2023
Cessation of Shri Saurabh Gupta, Company Secretary w.e.f. 03/08/2023
Appointment of Shri Harsh Tiwari, Company Secretary w.e.f. 16/08/2023
Cessation of Shri. Meharban Singh Bisht, Nominee Director w.e.f. 30/01/2024
Appointment of Mr.Uday Raj Singh, Nominee Director w.e.f. 17/02/2024

U R

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company met ‘4’ times during the year under review on 19/05/2023,
15/09/2023, 29/09/2023 and 12/01/2024 and in respect of which proper notices were given and
the proceedings were properly recorded, signed and maintained in the minute’s book kept by the
Company for the purpose,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As per Section 149(4) your Company is required to appoint at least 2 nos. of independent directors
in the Board which we have appointed on 24/01/2023 and duly regularised in 51#tAnnual Generat
Meeting.Details are mentioned below:

1. Shri Dev Vrat Rana, DIN: 02910081
2. Shri Dharmendra Singh, DIN: 10085124

COMMITTEE THE BOARD OF DI ORS OF THE COMPANY

For effective and efficient functioning of the Company, the Board of Directors has constituted the
following Committees:

1) Audit Committee: -

Your company is a government company and due to this some of the provisions of Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to your Company. Further,Board has appointed 2
Independent Director on 24/01/2023, and the Audit Committee is being constituted on 190 Board
Meeting held on 12/01/2024,
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The members of the Audit Committee on 31/03/2024 are as follows:

S.No. Name: Designation Designation
{in Company) (in Audit Committee)
1. Shri. Uday Raj Singh Nominee Director Chairman
2. Shri Trilok Singh Martolia Executive Director Member
3. Shri Dev Vrat Rana independent Director Member
4, Shri Dharmendra Singh Independent Director Member

2} Nomination and Remuneration Committee: -

As already discussed, your company is a government company and due to MCA notification
dated 05% June, 2015 some of the provisions of Section 178 are not applicable to your company. The
Company considers human resources as its invaluable assets. Further, Board has appointed 2
Independent Director on 24/01/2023, and deferred the constitution of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to the next FY,

MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS

The 51stAnnual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year 2022-2023 was held on
Wednesday, 20" December, 2023 at 11:30A.M. at the Guest House in front of registered office of the
Company at Kichha, Udham Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand - 263148.

PARTICULAR F_THE EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL ING _OF THE COMPANY D
DURING THE YEAR

During the year under review no Extra-ordinary general meeting has been held.
COST IT

The Directors have appointed M/s. Satnam Singh Saggu, Cost Accountant as the Cost Auditors to
audit the accounts relating to manufacturing of Sugar for the financial year ending March 31, 2024,

TICULARS OF 1 RANTEES ESTMENTS MADE UNDER ION 186 OF THE
MPANIES ACT, 2013

During the year under review, there are no particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made
under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

L CHANGE MMITMEN ECTING THE FINAN 10N OF THE
OMPANY WHI VE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF NCIAL YEAR OF T
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There has not been any material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

TICULARS OF ACTS OR ARRA NTS MADE WITH THER D PARTIES

Company has not entered into any related party transaction which is to be covered under Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Z



STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION HAS BEEN

E BY THE BOARD S OWN PERFORMAN CTORS, AND THAT OF IT
COMMITTEES

As the paid share capital of your Company is less than Rs. 25 Crore, the Statement indicating the
manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance, its
Director's and that of its Committees is not applicable on your Company.

DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES COVERED UNDER RULE 5{2) OF THE
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES,
2014

None of the employee of your Company, who was employed throughout the financial year, was in
receipt of remuneration in aggregate of One Crore two lakh rupees or more or if employed for the
part of the financial year was in receipt of remuneration of eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees or
more per month.

OF THE SIGNIFI MATERIAL ORD EGULATORS OR
COURTS OR IBUNAL IMPACTING T GOING CONCERN STATUS AND NY'S
OPE 10N IN FUTURE

No such kind of orders has been passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals during the financial
year 2023-24.

NAME OMPANIES WH BECOME OR CEASED TQ BE S, JOINT
VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, there is no Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules framed there under.

AUDITORS

Under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, Comptroller & Auditor General of India vide their
appointment letter dated 20/03/2023 have appointed M/s. ManojVatsalamd Co. Chartered
Accountants, Haldwani, to conduct the statutory audit of Annuat Accounts of the company for the F.Y.
ended on 31st March, 2024.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditor in their report has made their observation in following words and pointwise reply
of Management to the same is reproduced hereof:

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ OBSERVATION MANAGEMENT REPLY
(KEY AUDIT MATTER)

1 | We draw attention to Note 6 of the Statement of | Management of the Company took note of the
financial position, the Company has defaulted on | opinion given by the Auditor and has assured
several loans advanced by the state government | to make best efforts to align respective matter
amounting to a total outstanding of long-term debt of | after taking observation of CAG.

Rs. 1,16,31,69,323 on which interest accrued during
the year is Rs. 18,35,09,415.64.

No clarification has been received regarding the total
interest accrued up to 31.03.2024 of Rs.
2,42,14,38,977.28

Where the Interest accrued amount has far exceeded
the principal loan amount, charging further interest
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on defaulted loan where there is uncertainty
regarding repayment of interest, we advise no
further interest should either be charged or provided
for but instead be properly disclosed in the Notes to
accounts highlighting the material uncertainty that
arises on the going concern assumption in case the
interest becomes payable along with possible
government action regarding the same.

During the year, the Sugar Mill sold Scrap for Rs.
254.20 Lacs. There is no dedicated scrap yard for
storage and such scrap was previously unaccounted
in the books of accounts and we did not come across
any prior management due process or
documentation of such scrap being held by them
before the date of sale. The quantity of scrap was
valued at the time of sale and we therefore cannot
comment upon the accuracy and completeness of
scrap sale.

In the case of Sugar Mill Scrap, management
of the Company specified that the Company is
working in the seasonal Sugar
Manufacturing and in the off season mill
proceeds the repair and maintenance of the
large machinery, pipelines, tanks etc, and in the
due process scrap comes out which is difficult
to ascertain the value and quantity of it due to
the high manpower requirement and cost. So
the scrap is accounted and shown as the
income in the respective year.

The Government guarantee fee payable should be
created on the government guarantee advanced to
the company (Rs.110 Cr), however we observed that
the fee payable is being calculated on the opening
balance of the cash credit limit {Rs. 30.52 Cr) against
which government guarantee is provided for. In our
opinion it leads to understated lability for the
Company.

Management of the Company are committed to
the compliance of the Directives, rules and
reguiations of the concerned act hence we took
note of the opinion provided by the Auditor
and assuring that we will comply as per the
directives in the upcoming year.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ OBSERVATION
{(EMPHASIS MATTER)

MANAGEMENT REPLY

The CAG report pointed out additional security
deposit of Rs. 18.93 lacs required to be deposited to
UPCL but the additional deposit had not been made
by the management. The payment from March
onwards includes the security deposit amount and is
being duly deposited by the management in each
electricity bill. The remaining amount will be
deposited in lump sum during the coming financial
year against which the management has created a
Provision in the books.

Compliance has been duly completed in F.Y
2024-25,

The defaulted loans received from the State
Government have been classified under other
current liabilities- current maturity of long-term
debt. The management reply regarding such
treatment was on account of lack of clarity regarding
the government’s action for such loans, such
classification was followed. This presents a skewed
CA ratio as the entire defaulted loan amount is
presented under other current liabilities. Since the
loan is not expected to be settled with the next 12
menths, its classification as current liability is
inconsistent with conceptual accounting framework.

In this regard Management of the
Company wants to convey that the Company is a
state Government undertaking and duly run as
per the directives and order of the state
government,

Loans which are not repaid within the due date
are treated as current liability as upto now there
is no repayment plan has been finalized. We will
make efforts as per the opinion from the auditor
after taking observation from the CAG,

The Company has created a provision for Rs.578.77
lacs pertaining to Gratuity expense of Gadarpur Mill
staff employees (26 Permanent and 107 Seasonal)
who got transferred to Kiccha sugar mill in the year
2015. The provision created is for the period from
the date of employment to the year of transfer of the
employees, the gratuity for the said employees is
covered under LiC for the period after 2015 however

Management of the Company took note of the
opinion given by the Auditor and has conveyed
that currently Company has accumulated loss
in the accounts and as per the directives of
CAG provisioning is needed to be done of the
liabilities, hence provision of this liability is
being created.
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the created provision for the prior pericd is not for a
registered gratuity trust and would be disallowed as
an expense under income tax calculation thus
resulting in a higher income tax liability.

As per accounting standards, an extra-ordinary item
is any kind of abnormal loss or gain that is not
generated from the regular business operations.
Such types of events are infrequent in nature and are
non-recurring. We draw attention to Note No. 23,
Subsidy received for cane price 2022-2023 of Rs.
3,800.82 lacs are not abnormal in nature as the
company’s been receiving government assistance for
cane price payment in the previous years as well and
therefore its treatment as extra-ordinary is
inconsistent with the standards. The incorrect
classification present’s a skewed reflection of the
company performance as such is normally excluded
by users of financial statement in calculating P/E
ratio.

In this matter, Management of the Company
wants to specify that the due fo the uncertainty
of the amount of sugarcane the Company
receive  every year and  subsequent
manufacturing of sugar, it is difficult to assess
the revenue, though we try our best 1o make all
the payments through the companies resources
and the excess amount we receive from the
state government as subsidy in order to pay the
cane price.

During the current FY, the Factory installed a Boiler
related expansion Project, to improve efficiency and
optimize expenses in manufacturing, The State Govt,
had sanctioned a Grant, which was received at
different intervals during the financial year. There
were days during the Year when sanctioned funds
were  exhausted and the Factoryhad to
temporarily use the Working Limits.so as to ensure
the earliest installation and commencement of the
Project, before the crushing season 2023-24, due to
non-payment of Vendor Bills. The utilisation was
immediately replenished as soon as the Grant
amounts were received. In our opinion other than for
special circumstances, the Working Limits should not
be utilized for Capital expenditure.

Management took note of this opinion and
will make efforts in upcoming year.

Since the Sugar Industry is seasonal, the funds
utilization and surplus cannot be timed and there are
instances when after Sale of the Sugar in Stock from
the Crushing season 2022-23, the Working Limits are
repaid and the Surplus funds are parkedin short
term Fixed Deposits. Similarly during the current FY
2023-24, at the year end, they were soon in the
Balance Sheet, Working Limits utilized and Funds
invested in Short term Deposits which matured in
Aprii/May 2024. These situations are usually
avoided by the Management and it is advised that if
an Investment Committee [ooks into the Annual Cash
Flows and periods of idle Surplus, then Income on
idle funds could be maximized and utilisation of
Working Limits minimized. Funds needed are
impacted with the Sugar Cane MSP and the length of
the Crushing Season.

Management took note of this opinion and
will make efforts in upcoming year.

The very low yield per ton of sugar cane crushed
(only 10%), the high expenditure incurred on
Repairs to run an old Plant (more than the
depreciated value of Plant excluding Modernization)
and the very high Wages, (over Rs. 70,000 per
employee including end of term benefits and medical
expenses) puts an uneconomical financial burden on
manufacturing and the Cost per quintal of Sugar
would always be higher than the Sales realization
pet quintal

Management of the Company informed the
Auditor regarding this contention that
Company has benchmarked one of the highest
yield this crushing season at the rate of 10.82%
per ton of sugar cane crushed and also
mentioned that the yield is based on the
sugarcane recovery in which company could
not do much except efficient and effective
working.

Regarding high wages, our Company is a state
goverament company and wages payment is
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done as per the regulations and Government
orders.

8 | Sundry debtors with a credit balance of Rs.

1,42,79,463.62 were shown as Current Liability as on
the balance sheet date, being Advance received
towards Sale of Sugar, since the sale for the same had
not completed till 31st Mar,2024.

In this regard, Management of the Company
conveyed that the Company received Rs.
1,06,95.785.00 from RFC, Haldwani, on
21/03/2024 as advance against purchase of
sugar and lifting of sugar is being done by the
aforesaid corporation on 22/04/2024, hence

adjustments is being done accordingly.

Except that there is no qualification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer made by Statutory
auditors in their report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report from the Practicing Company Secretary is
not applicable to the Company.

SECRET D

Your Company have adopted Secretarial Standard-1 {Board Meeting) and Secretarial Standards-2
(General Meetings) (together referred to as the Secretarial Standards) w.e.fist July, 2015 as
approved by the Central Government and issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI) under the provisions of Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), vide 1CSI
Notification No. 1 (55} of 2015 dated April 23rd, 2015 and published in the Gazette of India
Extraordinary Part 1l - Section 4.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Today, businesses have an extended set of stakeholders - local communities, social organizations
and the society in general with the ability to influence the future of business. The stakeholders have
ethical, social and environmental expectations that extend beyond financial goals and legal
expectations - implicit social contracts that enterprise must honor. We believe that these social
covenants are fundamental to nurturing stakeholder trust and ensuring business continuity.

You Company believes that Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) is about the integration of social,
environmental and economic considerations into the decision - making structures and processes of
husiness. It is about using innovation to find creative and value- added solutions and societal and
environmental challenges. It is about engaging shareholder and other stakeholders and collaborating
with them to more effectively manage potential risks and build credibility and trust in society.
Ultimately, it is about delivering improved shareholder value, providing enhanced services, building
trust and credibility in the society in which the business operates, and becoming more sustainable
over the longer term.

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules framed there under,
every company including its holding or subsidiary and a foreign company, which fulfills the criteria
specified in sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act shall comply with the provisions of Section 135
of the Act and its rules.

Since the Company is failing under criteria specified in sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act, your
board of directors have approved a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy at their meeting
held on 23 February, 2021 and vested the duties & functions of CSR committee* in the entire
board of directors.

Subject to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs Notification dated 28th September, 2020 attention has

been drawn on *any reference of ‘CSR Committee’ in this policy shall be discharged by entire
Boa i il any CSR Committee of the board has not been

nstituted for the purpose.
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Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide their notification dated 28th September, 2020 related to
Companies {(Amendment) Act, 2020 have inserted following Sub-section {9) in Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013:

“(9) Where the amount to be spent by a company under sub-section {5) does not exceed fifty lakh
rupees, the requirement under sub-section (1} for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee shall not be applicable and the functions of such Committee provided under this section
shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board of Directors of such company.”

Your Company falls under the abovementioned criteria and thus entire Board of Directors shall
ensure operating system and monitoring mechanism for development and implementation of CSR
activities.

CSR programs undertaken by your Company include activities specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder for the benefit of community at large. Your Company
CSR efforts are focused in the immediate vicinity of it plant where your Company’s operation is
situated, ensuring that majority CSR funds are spent on activities addressing the needs of the local
community.

For the Financial year 2023-24 company have average net loss of Rs. 969.65 (in thousands)(Average
of F.Y. 2020-21, 2021-22&2022-2023). It means there is no amount required to be contributed
towards CSR during the F.Y. 2023-24.

Detailed policy of Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") as per section 135 of companies Act, 2013
was framed in the financial year 2020-2021 and the same is available at Company’s website
hitp: / /kichh therinfo for public viewing.

An annual report on detailed CSR activities forming part of this report is annexed as ANNEXURE-A.

HEALTH & SAFETY
The management has identified measures for health and safety in all its operations as a key business

imperative. The health initiatives have a special focus on the health of women employees. These are
designed to provide an injury - free working environment for a healthy and happy workplace.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The provisions regarding vigil mechanism as provided in Section 177{9) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under are applicable on your Company. Further, Board has
appointed 2 (two) Independent Director on 24/01/2023, and deferred the mechanism to be
functional to the next F.Y.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company’s internal control systems are adeguate and commensurate with the nature and size of
the Company and it ensures:
e Timely and accurate financial reporting in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
» Optimum utilization, efficient monitoring, timely maintenance and safety of its assets,
» Compliance with applicable laws, regulations and management policies,

HUMAN RE R EVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIA LAT

The Company is pleased to report that during the year under reporting, the industrial relations were
cordial,

The Company continues to take new initiatives to further align its HR Policies to meet the growing
needs of its business. People development continues to be a key focus area in your Company.

%



ONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNQLOGY ABSORPTION FOREIGNE AN ARNINGS
AND OUTGO

Since your company is engaged in the manufacturing activity, information required to be provided
under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of
energy and technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, have been furnished in
considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during the year under review. The
ANNEXURE-B is attached herewith with regard to the Conservation of Energy and Technology
Absorption.

LIQUIDITY

Your Company maintains sufficient cash to meet our strategic objectives. We clearly understand that
the liquidity in the Balance Sheet is to ensure balance between earning adequate returns and the
need to cover financial and business risks. Liquidity also enables your Company to position itself for
quick responses to market dynamics.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company follows a good governance structure that specifies the distribution of rights and
responsibilities among different participants in the organizations (such as the Board of Directors,
managers, shareholders, creditors, auditors and other stakeholders) and specifies the rules and
procedures for making decisions in corporate affairs. The structure allows the organization to
pursue its objectives together with the alignment of interests of the stakeholders.

The Corporate Governance Philosophy of your Company stems from its belief that the Company’s
business strategy, plans and decisions should be consistent with the welfare of all its stakeholders,
including Shareholders, Good Corporate Governance practices enable a Company to attract financial
and human capital and leverage these resources to maximize long-term shareholder value, while
preserving the interests of multiple stake holders, including the society at large,

Your Company has laid strong foundation for making Corporate Governance a way of life by
constituting a Board with a balanced mix of professionals of eminence, inducting competent
professionals across the organization and putting in place appropriate system, process and
technology.

IRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed;

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the period ended 31.03.2024, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

b) that the Directors have selected such accountin g policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and the profit or
loss of the Company for the period ended 31.03.2024;

¢) that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

A



d) that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis and

e) that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Board takes this opportunity to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and
commitment of employees shown at all levels. Your Board also wishes to place on record its
appreciation for the services rendered by its auditor, consultants and business partners. Your
directors’ wishes to express their gratitude for the valuable support and co-operation received from
the Central and State Government Authorities and place on record its sincere thanks to all the
stakeholders including Bankers, Financial Institutions, Investors, Service Providers as well as
regulatory and government authorities for extending support and placing their faith and trust on the
Board.

Place: b e'hh&d’*m On behalf of the Board

Date: {9}/09/2024 KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

A
artolia Uday Ifaj Singh
Director) (Director)
: 09311718 DIN: 07205715
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ANNEXURE ~B OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption &

foreign earning & outgo.

(A) Conservation of Energy- Following equipment have been installed to conserve theenergy: -

1. Vapour Line Juice Heater for boiling of Raw Juice,
2. Condensate Flash Recovery
3. Double effect Semi Kestner with pre-evaporator.

FORM - A
Particulars Financial year | Financial year
2023-24 2022-23
Power & Fuel consumption: ' '
A. Electricity:
Purchased Unit 1628679.00 27,85,895.00
Total amount fin Rs.) 14317427.00 14356100.00
Rate/unit (in Rs.) 8.79 515
B. Own Generation:
i Units produced through Diesel Generator 34493.00 47155.00
Units produced by per Ltr. of Diesel 4.21 4.66
Cost per unit 21.4%) 19.31
i) Units produced through Steam Turbine 7474356.00 1,37,55,500.00
Unit per Ltr. Gas/0il . -
Units produced per Tonne Bagasse 81.33 105.81
Cost per unit 21.52 34.34
fii} Coal - -
Quantity (Tonnes) -
Total cost (in Rs.) . .
Average Rate (in Rs.) . -
iv) Other Internal Generation - -
Units - -
Rate /unit - -
Power consumed on Generation of per unit: -
Standard, if any.
Power consumed on per qtl. Sugar production:
Electricity (Units) Hydel 5.00 6.48
Coal - -
Other -From Diesel (DG set) 011 011
From Bagasse (Steam Turbine) 2295 31.99

(B) Technology Absorption - -
FORM B

Form for digclosure of particulars with respect to absorption

Research & Development:
1, Areasin which R & D work done
2. Profitby R& D work
3. ExpenditureonR&D

{C} Receipt & Expenditure of Foreign Currency
1. Earned Foreign Currency
2. Expenditure of Foreign currency

Y4 7 'tfﬂ

P
(D. C. Pandey) (ANK Pal)
[/c Chief Engineer ChiefChemist

¥

Nil
Nil
it

Nil
Nil

P

(U%‘Eﬁi Singh)

irector
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MANOJ VATSAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Member of the Kichha Sugar Company Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statement of The Kichha Sugar Company Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the standalone Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statement™).

I our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the

effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Financial
 Statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2024 and profit/loss, and its Cash flows for the year
ended on that date. '

Rasis of Qualified Opinion

We draw attention to Note 2,1Reserve and Surplus in the Balance Sheetwhich reported cumulative loss of Rs,
30,350.85 lacs.The Company’s lack of ability to generate Operational profits without Government assistance to
meet operating expenses is indicative of material uncertainty regarding the going concern assumption.

The Company has also eroded .its net worth, consecutive losses coupled with outstanding loan interest and
principal repayment for defaulted loans endangers the going concern assumption for the company,

Some financial reporting frameworks contain an explicit requirement for Management to make a specific
assessment of the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, and standards regarding matters to be
considered and disclosures to be made in connection with going concern. No such exercise has been
undertaken by the Management yet and is advised to have a clear assessment of the material uncertainty
regarding going concern assumption.

Durga Ciwy Centre, Hall-1/D, Il Floor, Haldwani {U.A)Tele(05946) 228558, Mobile - 9837
- E-Mail: manojvatsalca@gmail.com, Website:www.mancjvatsalco-ca.com




MANOJ VATSAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

The Management has not made any necessary and adequate disclosures regarding any material uncertainty
around going concern assumption which subjected our audit report to present a qualified opinion.

E{éy Audit Matters

Key Audit are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the standalone financial statement, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

We draw attention to Note 6 of the Statement of financial position, the Company has defaulted on several
toans advanced by the state government amounting to a total outstanding of long-term debtof Rs.
- 1,16,31,69,323 on which interest accrued during the year is Rs.18,35,09,415.64.

No clarification has been received regarding the total interest accrued up to 31.03.2024 of Rs.
2.42,14,38,977.28

Where the Interest accrued amount has far exceeded the principal loan amount, charging further interest on
defaulted loan.where there is uncertainty regarding repayment of interest, we advise no further interest
should either be charged or provided for but instead be properly disclosed in the Notes to accounts
highlighting the material uncertainty that arises on the going concern assumption in case the interest becomes
payable along with possible government action regarding the same.

During the year, the Sugar Mill sold Scrap for Rs.254.20 Lacs. There is no dedicated scrap yard for storage and
such scrap was previously unaccounted in the books of accounts and we did not come across any prior
management due process or documentation of such scrap being held by them before the date of sale.The
quantity of scrap was valued at the time of saleand we thérefore cannot comment upon the accuracy and
- completeness of scrap sale. '

The Government guarantee fee payable should be created on the government guarantee advanced to the
company {Rs.110 Cr), however we observed that the fee payable is being calculated on the opening batance of
the cash credit limit (Rs. 30.52 Cr) against which government guarantee is provided for. In our opinion it leads
to understated liability for the Company. '

Durga City Centre, Hall-1/D, 1l Floor, Haldwani (U.A)Tele(05946) 228558, Mobile - 98371-70647
E-Mail: manojvatsalca@gmail.com,Website:www.manojvatsalco-ca.com
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MANOJ VATSAL & CO.
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information Other than the Standalone Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Report on
Corporate Governance and Directors Report including the Annexures to Directors Reports, Business
Responsibility Report, and the Shareholders information, but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our Auditor’s report thereon. The aforesaid report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.Ouropinion on the Standalone Financial Statement does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of Standalone Financial Statement, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it became available and in doing so consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistence with the standalone Financial Statement or our knowledge obtained during our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. -

When we read the Company Annual Report and if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and shall take appropriate
actions, if required.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to.the preparation and presentation of these Standalone financial Statements that give true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and Cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the .
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the Assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies ; making judgments’ and
estimate that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for -ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that
are given true and fair view and free from material misstatement , whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company ability the continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate t
" or cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so. A

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting pr

Durga City Centre, Hall-1/D, Il Floor, Haldwani (U.A)Tele{05946) 228558, Mobile - 98371- _ § V?
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statement are free
from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect material misstatements when it exists. Misstatement can arise from
frand or error and are considered material if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influences the economic decisions of users taken based on these Standalone Financial Statements.

As a part of audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professmnal judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit,

We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud and
ervor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
“resulting for fraud is higher than resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intention
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls. _

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
the related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s-use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exits related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that material
misstatement exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosure in the
financial statements or if such disclosure is inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease to continue as a gomg concern.

~ Evatuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statement represent the underlying transactions and event in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may- be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors.in. L!lplannmg the
| PSS oY
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scope of cur audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identitied misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding amiong others matters, the planned scope
and timings of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identifying during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicated with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasenably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the, matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significant in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We described those matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report hecause the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to-outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

The CAG report pointed out additional security deposit of Rs. 18.93 lacs required to be deposited to
UPCL: but the additional deposit had not been made by the management. The payment from March
onwards includes the security deposit amount and is being duly deposited by the management in each
electricity hill. The remaining amount will be deposited in lump sum during the coming financial year against
which the management has created a Provision in the books.

" The defaulted loans received from the State Government have been classified under other current

fiabilities- current maturity of long-term debt. The management reply regarding such treatment was on
account of fack of clarity regarding the government’s action for such loans, such classification was followed.
This presents a skewed CA ratio as the entire defaulted loan amount is presented under other current
liabilities. Since the loan is not expected to be settled with the next 12 months, its classification as current
liability is inconsistent with conceptual accounting framework.

The Company has created a provision for Rs.578.77 lacs pertaining to Gratuity expense of Gadarpur Mill staff
employees (26 Permanent and 107 Seasonal) who- got transferred to Kiccha sugar mill in the year 2015. The
provision created is for the period from the date of employment to the year of transfer of the employees, the
;D: auuty for the sald employees is Covered under LIC for the period after 2015 however the crea%prowsmn

income tax calculation thus resulting in a higher income tax liability.
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- adjust against the Gratuity expenses undertaken on behalf of Gadarpur employees by Kiccha sugar Mill. As per

- and the Factory had to' temporarily use the Working Limits. so as to ensure the earliest installation and

- Surplus, then Income oh idle funds could be maximized and utilisation of Working Limits minimized. Funds

MANOJ VATSAL & CO.
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We draw attention to Note 14 - Other Current assets/ Advance receivable in cash or kind, there is an
advance standing against Gadarpur Chinni Mill for Rs. 145.27 Lacs which the Management is intending to

management’s explanation the such debit balance is completely adjusted against the provision created and is
no longer standing in the books in the next financial year.

As per accounting standards, an extra-ordinary item is any'kind of abnormal loss or gain that is not generated
from the regular business operations. Such types of events are infrequent in nature and are non-recurring. We
draw attention’ to Note No. 23, Subsidy received for cane price 2022-2023 of Rs. 3,800.82 lacs are not
abnormal in nature as the company’s been receiving government assistance for cane price payment in the
previous years as well and therefore its treatment as extra-ordinary is inconsistent with the standards. The
incorrect classification present’s a skewed reflection of the company performance as such is normally
excluded by users of financial statement in calculating P/E ratio.

During the current F.Y. the Factory instalied a Boiler related expansion Project, to improve efficiency and
optimize expenses in manufacturing. The State Govt, had sanctioned a Grant, which was received at different
intervals during the financial year. There were days during the Year when sanctioned funds were exhausted

commencement of the Project before the- crushing season for FY 2023.24,due to nonpayment of Vendor Bills.
The utilization was immediately replenished as soon as the Grant amounts were received. In our opinion other
than {or special circumstances, the Working Limits should not be utilized for Capital expenditure.

AS 12 tor Government Grants either suggests adjustment of the Grant received against the Capital cost of
Asset, or the Grant is shown as Liability and each year the proportionate depreciation to Sanctioned and Own
funds, is debited to the Liability and Profit & Loss account respectively. The Co has followed the second option.

Since the Sugar Industry is seasonal, the funds utilization and surplus cannot be timed and there are instances
when after Sale of the Sugar in Stock from the Crushing season of the FY 2022.23, the Working Limits are
repaid and the Surplus funds are parked in short term Fixed Deposits. Similarly during the current FY 2023.24,
at the yearend, they were showing in the Balance Sheet, Working Limits utilized and Funds invested in Short
term Deposits which matured in April/May 2024.These situations are usually avoided by the Management
avoided and it is advised that if an Investment Committee looks into the Annual Cash Flows and periods of idle

needed are impacted-with the Sugar Cane MSP and the length of the Crushing Season.
The very low yield per ton of sugar cane crushed (only 10%), the high expenditure incurred on Repairs to run

an old Plant(more than the depreciated value of Plant excluding Modernization) and the very high Wages
[()V(:‘l Rs. 70 (}{JO per employee including end of term beneFts and medical expenses) puts an une l
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financial burden on manufacturing and the Cost per qumtal of Sugar would always be higher than the Sales
realization per quintal

Sundry debtors with a credit balance of Rs1,42,79,463.62 were shown as Current, Liabili'ty as on the balance
sheet date, being Advance received towards Sale of Sugar, since the sale for the same had not completed till
31+ Mar, 2024,

Other Matter

As per new directives, the payment outstanding to MSME for period exceeding 45 days would be disallowed in
the next year and should be provided for 20% of the outstanding amount. On inspection we came across
Creditors for material and supplies belonging to MSME amounting to 10,20,286.44 for which a pmwsmn
should be created for Rs.2,04,057.288.Refer Annexure 1

As per Note 12, FDRs (Rs.6,77,430)pledged with Reglstrar General Hon' ble High Court and the pollution
control board, no documentation was available. As per Management response, the said pledged FDs are
under the Lustody of respective parties and are duly renewed at their end, the management should requisite
for an acknowledgement from the concerned parties regarding the same.

We draw attention to Note No. 4, the Company received Government assistance in name of loan for Rs
Rs.300.00 Lacs, the classification though seemed correct, however on inquiry we were informed no repayment
plan has been decided by the government under which such loan was advanced and therefore balance remains
unchanged from' previous years. The assistance was provided to meet operational expenses such as
salary payments and as per AS 12, since the amount can be measured reliably and is provided for
specific conditions (operational expenses) it should be treated as Revenue grant and accordingly be

- derecognized as long-term debt and shown as a credit in Profit and Loss under Prior period income, if

[t

the uncertainty regarding repayment continue to exjsts.

The total grant received for the purchase of Property Plant and Equipment is for Rs. 1203 lacs against which
the PPE purchased was for Rs. 1478.62 lacs. We did not receive any completion certificate for the same as
it was not available and the utilization certificate provided to us was a project cost sheet certified by
the Chief Engmeer and the Chief Chemist.

The purchase of Property Plant and Equipment was routed through Cash Credit Limit maintained over
at Udham Singh Nagar Cooperative Bank. CC account provides line of credit for businesses and
companies to meet their instant cash requirement and meeting their working capital demands,
purchase of long-term capital asset through CC is a violation of the terms of line of credit as prescribed
by both NABARD which governs USNCB and RBI. As per management explanation, the Co g)@?mr i
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Working Limits temporarily, when there was a delay in the disbursement of Grant. The funds utilized from the
Working Limits were immediately replenished as soon as the Grant funds were received.

On inspecting the payroll master and while checking the accuracy of the Provision created for Gratuity for
Gadarpur employees; we observed several occasional and permanent workers being paid salary of more than
70,000 per month. On inquiring, the management provided the explanation of the high salaries being paid to
workers on account of their DA (320%) being linked with the price index and thus resulting in such high wage
expense. The propriety of such wage expense is questiohable. A closer inspection into the wages being paid
to the laborers is advisable for a more effective control over their direct cost.
. 1 .

A balance of Rs.6,26,653 and Rs.2,58,693 as COVID 19 payable and unclaimed cheque respectively was shown
in the balance sheet under other current liabilities which is outstanding for more than five years the same
should be the written off. '

MAT credit of Rs.3,39,87,153 was shown in the balance sheet under other current assets, we could not
ascertain the aging of same, an appropriate accounting adjustment could not be made.

Interest accrued on other deposits, amounting to Rs. 582,117, has been outstanding for over 5 years. This

- amount should be writtén off from the books.

- Income pertaining to earlier years, shown in the profit and loss account as exceptional items (prior period

iterns), amounts to Rs. 15,482,981. This represents an extra expense for society commlssmn that was hooked
in the previous year and has been reversed due to a reductlon in commission rates.

An amount of Rs.261.92 lacs under the head “Advances to Uttarakhand ShakariChini Mills Sangh Ltd.”, shown
under current assets relates to sale made by Kicha Sugar Mill to Uttarakhand ShakariChini Mills Sangh Ltd
(H.0.), a part of the sale proceeds are left to H.0. which is adjusted against commission payable made on

purchase by the Co. from the respective societies.

An amount of Rs.98,97,720.39 is shown as Prior Year Expense in Profit & Loss Account.

Report on other Legal and regulatory requirements

" 1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act,.based on our report, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
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(h) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

() The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this report agree with the Books of Account; :

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with AS specified under Section 133
ol the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(2} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being
appointed-as a director in terms of Section 164 {2) of the Act;

([) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

(g} With respeét to the matter to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

Irn our opinion and according to the information and explaﬁation given to us, the remuneration paid during the
current year by the Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director is not more than the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which is
required te be commented upon by us.

~{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies. (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2024, on its financial position in
its Standalone Financial Statements. Refer Note {(39)to the Standalone Financial Statements;

il. The Lumpany did not have any long- _term contracts including derlvatwe contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses; '

iti. There has been no delay in transferring amounts requ1red to be transferred, to the
Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
~or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarant_ée, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(h) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Corhpany from any persen or entity,
including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that' the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {"Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on hebalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {i) and
(i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. There is no interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this
audit report and is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020(“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Finauncial Statement of the
Kichha Sugar Mill lintited for the year ended March 31, 2024 '

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (I‘j under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our
report of even date}

~ Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kichha Sugar Mi_l_l.s;%ﬂ{@itgd ("the
Company") as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financigiiak 'S,
Company for the year ended on that date. : - (g*
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In our opinien, the Company has adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31,2024, based on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential compoenents of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

Managements Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financiat controls based
on the internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
- safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred ta as "the Act™).

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
- controls over financial‘reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
linancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exits, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgments, including the assessment of the risk of misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained.is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting,..
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenarce of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) providé reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements. '

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with references to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusien or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

For: Manoj Vatsal & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration No. 010155C

Date:-19-09-2024
Place:-Haldwani

Manoj )
Managi
Sr. Partner,M.N.025757

UDIN:24025757BJZXM]2004
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors Report

Reterred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requ:rements section of our report of
even date to the members of Kichha Sugar Mills Limited on the Standalone financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2024

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of the audit, we state that:

i. a. (A} The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. There is no Fixed Assets register maintained and the
equipment are not properly tagged and counted for. '

(B) The Company has no intangible assets disclosed in the financial statements

b. We have not been provided any evidence or report to verify whether these property, plant, and equipment,
have been physically verified by management at reasonable intervals in the absence of any report we cannot
comment whether any material discrepancies were noticed on such verlﬁcatlon and if so whether the same is
delt with the books of accounts.

¢ According to the information and explanation received by us, the Company has no immovable properties
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of
the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements. As per financial statements, there are self-constructed
buildings, constructed ovér these lease hold lands where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favor of the company, and as explained to us there are no title deed required for these self-
constructed buildings,

d. As per information provided to us the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
and Intangible assets during the year.

- e, The Management has confirmed that no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2024, for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made there under.
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i} a The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In
our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on
such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of account. However, the Company should
have on record and Books, the Scrap generated (A) Metal (B)Mud (C)Coal ash(D)Bagasse, as these have
considerable value and hence the Cost of Production could be-reduced if an accurate record is maintained.

" b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs 5 crores in aggregate, from Banks, on the basis of security of Current assets. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly statements comprising of
Stock statements and book debt statements, filed by the. Company with banks are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and no material discr epancies have
been observed. However,if the cost of Production is more than the Sale value, then the Current Assets would
not be offeri ing adequate Brawing power.

iti) According to the information provided to us the Company has not made any investments in, and provided
guaranlee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, during the year.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant ofloans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities,

~as applicable,

v) As per explanations and explanations provided to us the Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts
which are deemed to be deposits during the year where the directive issued by the Reserve bank of India and
the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder were applicable. '

vi) A per our test check and as per information and explanation provided to us the Company has complied with
provisions specified by central government under section (1) of the section 148 of the companies act.

vii) (a} According to information and explanations provided to us and as per our test check, the Company is
generally regular, except some occasional minor delays, in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities,
However, as per our examination there is an outstanding demand ofRs. 2,40,131. 00{CGST) & Rs.
2,40,131.00(5GST) is being reflecting on portal, which is outstanding for a period of _jore than six

~months from the date they became payable. - VATS 4
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(h) According to information and explanations provided to us there are dues of provident Fund which have
" not been deposited till the year end on account of disputes. Detail of the same is annexed herewith vide
Annexure 'C’ ' '

viii} According to the information and explanations given to us and as confirmed by the management there were
no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in the

tax assessments under the [ncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.
. i .

ix) a. According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not defaulted in the repayment
of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year under
consideration. However, as informed to us the Company has defaulted in loan repayment of Uttarakhand
Government in earlier years, details as per Annexure D enclosed herewith.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

¢. To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied'by
- the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

. Based on the information and explanations provided to us, as well as our overall examination of the
Company’s financial statements, we found that funds raised on a short-term basis through a working capital
loan via a Cash Credit account with U.S. Nagar District Co-operative Bank Ltd., Kichha, with an outstanding
baiance of Rs 40.38 crores as-of 31/03/2024, have been utilized for capital expenditures of a long-term
nature. Such expenditures should be financed through other accounts rather than the Cash Credit
account."

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and'on ‘an overall examination of the financial
statements, we report that the Company has not utilized the unutilized funds as at the beginning of the year
from the funds raised through the issue of shares or borrowings in the previous year to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. The Company has neither taken any funds from any entity or
person during the year.

f. According to the information and explanations given to us and on examination of the bhalance sheet of the
- Company, we report the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies.

¥} a. According to the information and explanations given to us the Company did not raise any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3
(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xi) a To the best of our knowledge, and information and explanations given by the management, we report that
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b. To the best of our knowledge, no report under subsection (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Gevernment, during the year and up to the date of this report. '

¢. As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

xit) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

xiv) The company'have an internal audit system in accordance with its size and business activities and the reports
of the internal auditors have been considered. However, internal audit was not applicable over the Company
during the year. ' B '

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not entered any nen-cash
transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi} a. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
- Hence, reporting under clauses (xvi)(a), (b), and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b. The Groﬁp does n_(it have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi}(d) of the
Order is not applicable.

avii) The Company has incurred cash losses during the financial year covered.

xviii} According te the information and explanations given to us there has been no resignation of the Statutory
Auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly reporting under clause (xiii) of the Order is not
applicable,

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, material uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report indi'cating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the

date ofbalance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance shegfadafe..
- date of balance sheet as an en they ue v pe ye %@@(}

Durga City Centre, Hall-1/D, Il Floor, Haldwani (U.A)Tele{05946) 228558, Mobile - 983
E-Mail: manojvatsaica@gmai!.com,Website:www.manojvatsalco-ca.com
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MANOJ VATSAL & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We draw attention to Note 23 Extraordinary items in the statement of profit and loss before which the reported

Joss for the two consecutive years of 2021-2022 and 2022-2023 is Rs 39.96 Cr. and Rs 50.68 Cr. The company’s

" lack of ability to generate profit without government assistance to meet operating expenses is indicating that

the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company.

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
puarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx) (&) According to information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our examination, we report
that the company has no unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule Vi to the Companies Act within a
period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
section 135 of the said Act; ' '

(b} According to information and explanations provided to us, no amount is remaining unspent under syb-
section {5} of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been transferred to
~ special account in compliance with the provision of sub- section (6) of section 135 of the said Act;

xxi} Consolidated Financial statement is not applicable over this company; hence this clause is not being
commented upon,

For: Manoj Vatsal & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration No. 010155C

Date;-19-09-2024
Place:-Haldwani

Sr. Partner,_M.N.025757
UDIN:24025757BJZXM]2004

Durga City Centre, Hall-1/D, Il Floor, Haldwani {U.A)Tele(05946) 228558, Mobile - 98371-70647
E-Mail: rnanojvatsalca@gmail.com,Website:www. manojvatsalco-ca.com '




ANNEXURE 1

MSME
Sr.No. | Particulars _ Closing Balance

1. | Dashmesh Enterprising Gadarpur- SC 3,64,885.88
2. | Krishna Trading Company 9,723
3. | Lucky Electrical and Automation . 4,07,050
4, | Rahul Associates 29,966
5. | Shree associates Delhi 6,353.56
6. | Swastik Metals Ghaziabad 195
7. | Uttaranchal Oxygen 89,959
8. | Hi Tech Weighing Engineers 12,449
9. | Reliance Enterprises Rudrapur 99,705

TOTAL 10,20,286.44

Annexure-C TO THE AUDITORS REPORT

Clause 3(VII)(b) of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020(“the Order”), issued by
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Forunm where Period to which the | Amount Remarks
dispute is pending | amount relates involved
' (Rs.)
Central Excise Excise Duty Hon'ble High January 2005 to 96,81,536 Tribunal has
Act, 1944 Court of March 2008 decided the case in
Uttrakhand ' ' favour of Kichha
Sugar Company
Ltd. And the
Department as
preferred an
appeal.
Central Excise Excise Duty Hon'ble High Qctober, 2013 to 28,28,750 Tribunal has
Act, 1944 Court of August 2014 decided the case in
: Uttrakhand favour of Kichha
' Sugar Company
Ltd. And the
Department as
preferred an
appeal.
Central Excise Excise Duty - Hon'bie High 10.5.2008 to 29,99,672 Tribunal has
Act, 1944 Court of .| 31.03.2009 and decided the case in
Uttrakhand 01.04.2011 to favour of Kichha
31.03.2012 Sugar Company
: Ltd. And the
Department as
preferred an,
appeal.
Central Excise Excise Duty Hon'ble High Pebruary 2013 12,52,998 Tribunal has
Act, 1944 Courtof to/September 2013 decided the case in
Uttrakhand favour of Kichha
L Sugar Company




Ltd. And the

Department as
preferred an
appeal.
Central Excise Excise Duty Custom Excise Sep. 2014 to May, 6,82,672 The Commissioner
Act, 1944 and Service Tax 2015 {Appeals) Central
Appellate . Excise, Meerut-1
Tribunal has rejected the
(CESTAT), Delhi appeal. Against
this order the
company has
appeal top higher
. forum.
Central Excise Excise Duty Custom Excise June, 2015 to March, | 24,45,172 The Commissioner
Act, 1944 ' and Service Tax 2016 (Appeals) Central
Appellate Excise, Meerui-1
Tribunal has rejected the
(CESTAT), Delhi appeal. Against
this order the
company has
appeal top higher
) . forum.
The Employee’s Provident Fund Hon'ble High May 2007 to Apr. 14,81,409 The Company is in
Pravident Fund Court of 2008 appeal against the
and Miscellaneous Uttarakhand order of
Act, 1952 Employees
Provident Fund
Tribunal New
_ : Dethi.
The Employee’s Provident Fund Hon'ble High Sep 2008 to Apr 1,45,124 The Company ig in
Hrovident Fund Court of 2011 appeal against the
and Miscellaneous Ottarakhand order of
Act,1952 Employees
: Provident Fund
Tribunal New
Dethi.
The Employee's Provident Fund Central Govt, Retaining Allowance | 14,55,087 The Company is in
Provident Fund Industrial off seasons 2017 appeat against the
and Miscellaneous Tribunal late payments order of Regional
Act, 1952 Lucknow. P.F. Commissioner
. i . Haldwani.
THE CENTRAL CGST and SGST CSGT dept, 2017-2018 Rs. Show Cause Notice
GOODS AND Haldwani 2,40,131.00(c. | and Swummary
SERVICES TAX ACT gst) & Rs. thereofl in Form

2,40,131.00(s
gst)

GST DRC-01 issued
as on date:
27.09.2023

& Order for
Determination of
Tax issued as on
date: 29.12.2023




Annexure-D TO THE AUDITORS REPORT

Clause 3{ix)(a) of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020("the Qrder”), issued by
Central Government of India in terins of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

DETAILS OF UNSECURED LOAN RECEIVED FROM GOVT. OF UTTARAKHAND AS ON 31/03/2024

Year of
Raceipt

PARTICULARS

AMOUNT
(Rs.)

Amt.
payable
till
31/03/
2024
{No.
oflnstt.)

Other
Current
Liabilities

Long
Term

interest
Rate

Interest upto
31.03.2024

Interest
accrued
during the
year

Total
Interest

2002-03

The loan of Rs.
100 Lacs was
sanctioned
from ’
Uttarakhand
Govt. vide
letter
Dehradun-
374fVan Gram
Vl/ Ganna 202
dt. 28  Oct,,
2002 for Cane
Price payment
repayable.  in

five equal
yearly
instalments

There is  no
interest Clause
and Rs. 25

Lacs was
refund  during
2006-07. The

net outstanding

loan, is Rs.

75,00,000/=

75,00,000

75,00,000

NA




2003-04

2003-04

The loan of Rs.
400 Lacs was
sanctioned
fromUttarakha
nd Govt. vide
letter = No.
367/Ganna-
Chini-2003-  dt.
13/10/2003 for
Cane Price
payment
repayable in
five equal
yearly
instalments
interest rate @
18% p.a. with
condition, if
timely payment
is made then
rebate @ 3.5%
will be
provided. There
is no
repaymer{t fill

| the date.

4,00,00,000

4,00,00,00
0

8%

14,01,04,918

72,00,000.
00

14,73,04,
918.00

The loan of Rs.
1122 Lacs was
sanctioned
fromUttarakha
nd Govt. vide
letter No. 601{i)
Ganna-Chini-
2003 dt.
27/11/03 for
cane Price
payment :
repayable in
five equal
yearly
instalments
interest rate
18% p.a. . There
is ono
repayment  till
the date,

11,22,00,00
0

11,22,00,0
o0

18%

39,06,21,541

2,01,96,00
0.00

41,08,17,
541.00




The loan of
Rs.450 Lacs
was sanctioned
from
Uttarakhand
Govt. Dehradun
for Cane price

payment
received on
2007-08 | 04/07/07, - 4,50,00,00 18% 81,00,000, | 13,56,19,
repayable in 4,50,00,000 0 12,75,19,672 00 672.00
five equal
waarly '
instalments
interest rate
18% p.a. . There
is . no
repayment  til}
the date.
The loan of Rs.
559,70Lacs was
sancticned
from
Uttarakhand
Govt, for Cane
price payment
received on
) 29/10/07, _—
00708 | repayable  in | 5,59,70,000 5'59’70’03 18% 1 45 53,85,566 ;‘jgg'”’w 1‘2%?3660'
five equal
yearly
instalments
interest rate
18% p.a. . There
is . ne
repayment il
the date.
The loan of Rs.
636.29 Lacs
was sanctioned
from
Uttarakhand
Govt. vide 6.0,
No. 520(i)
10/07 /K-
02/2008 dt.
' 07/10/08 0
2008-09 |\ oceived  from | 6,36,29,000 6,36,29,03 18% | 16,56,48,078 ;fég'sg’zz ;;’87_3;301’

the Asstt. Cane
Commissioner,
vide Cheque
No. 734097 dt.
14/10/08 for
Cane price
payment {2007-
08) repayable
in five equal




2008-09

yearly
instalments
interest rate

18% p.a. . There

is no
repayment  1ill

1 the date.

The loan of

Rs.1,34,46,323/
- was
sanctioned
from
Uttarakhand
Govi. vide G.0.
No. 34/XIV-
2/10/2007 dt.
16/01/09
received on
19/01/08  for
Cane price
payment  (07-

08) repayable in_

five equal
yearly '
instalments
interest rate
18% p.a. . There
is . ho
repayment  till
the date.

1,34,46,323

1,34,46,2

2
3

18%

3,43,62,169

24,20,338.
14

3,67,82,5
07.28

2012-13

The {oan of Rs.

660 Lacs  was

sanctioned
from
Uttarakhand
Govt, vide G.0.
No.  823/XIv-
02/10/2012 dt.
16/07/12
received from

the Asstt, Cane’

Commissicher,
vide  Cheque
No. 201738 ot.
19/07/2012 for
Cane price
payment i2011—
12} repayable in

five equal
yearly
instalments

interest rate
18% p.a. . There
is . No
repayment  till
the date.

6,60,00,000

6,60,00,00
0

18%

112,72,29,818

1,18,80,00
.00

13,51,09,
918.00




2012-13

The loan of Rs,
1608.23 Lacs
was sanctioned
from
Uttarakhand
Govt. vide G.O.
No.  1229/X1v-
2/2012 dt.
04/10/2012
received  from
the Asstt. Cane
Commissicner
vide D.D. No.
350270 dt.

06/10/2012 for

Cane price
payment {2011-
12} repayable in
five equal
yearly
instalments
interest rate
18% p.a. . There
is no
repayment  till
the date.

16,08,23,00
0

16,08,23,0
00

18%

30,36,77,885

2,89,48,14
0.00

33,26,26,
025.00

2013-14

The loan of
Rs,1999 Lacs
was sancticned
from
Uttarakhand
Govt, vide G.O.

No.  736/XIV-

02/2013/10/20
07 : dt.
05/07/2013 for
Cane price
payment {2012-
13} repayable in
five equal
yearly
instalments
interest rate
18% p.a. . There
is no
repayment  till
the date.

19,99,00,00
o

19,99,00,0
0o

18%

35,01,59,079

3,59,82,00
0.00

38,61,41,
079.00

2013-14

The loan of Rs.
500 Lacswas
sanctioned
from
Uttarakhand
Govt. for Cane
price  payment
(2012-13)
received
on22.08.2013

5,00,00,000

5,00,00,00
0

18%

8,64,73,973

90,00,000.
00

9,54,73,9
73.00




repayable in

five equal
yearly
instalments

interest rate
18%p.a.. There
is no

repayment  till-

the date.

2013-04

The loan of Rs.
15,31,46,000/=
was sanctioned
from
Uttarakhand
Govt. for Cane
price pay'ment
{2012-13)
received on
23.09.2013
repayable in
five equal
yearly '
instaiments
interest rate

18%-p.a. . There -
is no .

repayment  till
the date.

15,31,46,00
0

15,31,46,0
oo

18%

26,25,97,138

2,75,66,28
0.00

29,01,63,
418.00

2014-15

"'The loan of Rs.

1155.55 Lacs
was sanctioned
from
Uttarakhand
Govt. vide G.O.
No.  588/XIv-
02/2014/3({6}/3
012 dt.
10.06.2014  for
Cane _ price
payment {2013-
14) repayable in
five equal
yearly
instalments
interest  rate
9.25% p.a.
There i no
repayment  till
the date.

11,55,55,00
0

11,55,55,0
00

9.25%

9,41,49,625

1,06,88,83
7.50

10,48,38,
462.00




2015-16

The loan of Rs.
800 Lacs was
sanctioned
from
Uttarakhand
Govtl. vide G.0,
No. SXIV-
02/2014/9(16)/
2014 dt.
21.01.2016 for
Caneg
payment (2014-
15} repayable
in five equal
yearly
instalments at
Ni! interest
rate. There s
no  repayment
till the date,

price -

8,00,00,000

8,00,00,00
o

NA

2018-19

The loan of Rs.
300 lacs was
sanctioned by
Uttarakhand

Govt. for salary
& retaining
allowance  of
workers  vide

2/2018/. Terms
& condition for
répayment are
silent. There is
no  repayment
till date, .

no.  451/XIv-.

3,00,00,000

3,00,00,
000

NA

Total

1,19,31,69,3
23

1,16,31,69,

2,23,79,29,56
1.64

18,35,09,
415.64

2,42,14,3
8,977.28 |




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

KICHHA, U.5. NAGAR, UTTARAKHAND

CIN; U15421UR19725GC003513

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024

{Amount in Lakh Rs.)

Particulars

Notes

As ot 31.03.2024

Asat31.03.2023

g

g

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholder's Funds
{a) Share Capital
{b} Reserves and Surplus
{i) Other Reserve
Molasses Storage Facilities Reserve Fund
{ii} Profit and loss Account
(c) Money received against Share Warrants

{2)share Application Money Pending Aliotment
(3} Gowt. Grant for Modification of Plant (Capital)

{4} Non Current Liabilities
long Terms Borrowings

}i5] Current Liabilities

{a) Short-Term Borrowings

{b} Frade Payables

{c) Other Current Liabilities

{d) Short-Tarm Provisions

Total Equity & Liabilities
I.ASSETS

{a) Property, Plant & Equipment

{i) Tangible Assets

{ii} Intangible Assets

{iii) Capital WP

(iv) Intangible Assets under development
{b) Non Current Investments

{2) Current Assets

(a} inventories

(b) Trade receivables

k(c) Cash and Bank Balances

{d) Short-term loans and advances
{e] Other current assets

Total Assets

2.1

0o~ G

LI - ]

1,798.64

19.52
{30,343.66)

950.57

300.00

4,110.39
3,846.84
36,799.98
1,333.85

1,798.64

18.63
(30,770.82}

300.00

3,040.96
6,681.47
35,116.34
803.68

18,816.13

16,988.90

1,663.87

0.02

11,786.94
51.56
4,250.80

1,022.94

4

334.60

0.02

13,092.12
85.74
2,582.89

893.53

18,816.13

16,988.90

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
(Nates attached there to form an integral part of Batance Sheet)

{5.K. m:fey}
C.F.O0.
PAN: AUSPPA490R

arsh Tiwari) {Trilek Sin
COMPANY SECRETARY EXECU
PAN: ARHPT5411A DEF

24

-

artolia)
IRECTOR
‘09311718

For and on behalf of Board KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LTD
N CIN: U15421UR19725GC003513

As per our Report of even date attached herewith.

FOR M/s MANOJ VATSAL & CO.
Firm Reg. No: 010155C
Chartered Accouz;j?ts

=

fﬁ/x,f{}i% :d

CA MANOD) )

Partner

Membership No.: 025757
UDIN: 24025757BJZXNMI2004

PLACE: HALDWAN!
Dated: 19/09/2024

PLACE: DEKRADUN
Dated: 19/09/2024

{UD, {wﬁuem
DIRECTOR
DIN:07205715

PLACE: RUDRAPUR
Dated: 19/05/2024




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

KICHHA, U.5. NAGAR, UTTARAKHAND

CIN: U15421UR19725GC0O03513

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2024

{Amount in Lakh Rs. )

As per our Report of even date attached herewith,

FOR M/s MANOJ VATSAL 8 CO.
Firm Reg. No: 010155C
Chartered At::lj 1tants

RSN [y
f‘V\/{kw@{:q}
CAMA égfL sHi

Partner \/
Membership No, §25757
UDIN: 24025757BJZXMI2004

PLACE: HALDWANI
Dated: 19/09/2024

PLACE: DEHRADUN

DATED: 19/09/2024

Sr. Particulars Notes For the year ended | For the year ended
No 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
[ |Revenue from operations 15 16,013.06 16,435.34
16,013.08 16,435.34
I [Other Income 16 492 .89 640.06
H HL. Total income {1 +11) 16,505.95 17,075.40
IV |Expenses;
Cost of materials consumed 17 42,002.82 16,526.61
Changes in inventaries of finished goods and work-in-progress 18 1,344.14 (606.46)
Employee Benefit Expenses 19 3.373.12 2,958.00
Financial Costs 20 2,037.96 2,015.06
Depreciation and Amartization Expenses 21 74.70 34.32
Other Expenses 22 1,101.90 1,219.50
Total Expenses (1V) 19,934.64 22,147.03
vV |Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinacy items and tax (3,428.69) (5 071.63]L
vi Exceptional ltems -net income 23 55.85 100.69
VIl Torofit / {Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI} {3,372.84) (4,970.94)]
v Extraordinary [tems 23.1 3,800.00 3,639.79
X Tprofit f{Loss) before tax (Vil - VIII) 427.16 (1,331.15)
X |Tax expense:
{1} Current tax 65.57 -
{2) Earlier year tax adjustment - .
{3) Deferred tax - -
{2) MAT Credit (65.57) -
XU [Profit(Loss) from the perid from continuing operations (IX-X} 427,16 (1,331.15)
Xl [Earning per equity share:
(1) Basic (Amount in Rs.} 24 {74)
Significant Accounting Policles and Notes to Accounts 24
{Notes attached there ta form an integral part of Profit and Loss Account)
For and on behalf of Board KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LTD
CIN: U15421UR19725GC003513
: / . i
W l § I /’
{s. -§ neley) {Harsh Tiwari) {Trilok Si artolia) {l] Al SINGH)
CF.0. COMPANY SECRETARY EXECU DIRECTOR IRECTOR
PAN: AUSPP4490R PAN: ARHPT5411A DiIN:09311718 DIN:07205715

PLACE: RUDRAPUR

DATED: 19/09/2024




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

KICHHA, U.S. NAGAR, UTTARAKHAND
CIN: U15421UR19725GC003513

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

{Amount in Lakh Rs.)

PARTICULARS For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit before tax as per statement of Profit & Loss A/c {3.372.84) {4,970.94)
Adjusted for Non Cash Costs:
interest on Loans from Govt. of Uttarakhand 1,835.09 1.835.10
Depreciaticn 74.70 34.32
Excess Provision of Gratuity of Prior year - -
Molasses Storage Reserve 0.89 0.92
Provision for Govt. Guarantee fee 30.52 (83.85)
Provision for Gratuity premium 668.59 179.66
Provision for officials of factory - -
Provision far Saciety & Council Commission - 2,600.79 -
Short Term Provission for Selling Commission & Damages
Receivable and write back. - - 1,966.15
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (763.05) {3.004.79)
Increase in inventories of finished goods, & WIP & Stores
& spares. 1,305.18 {576.79
Increase in Trade receivable 34.18 {32.83)
Increase in other current assets {125.41) (322.90)
Increase in other current tiability {151.45) 70.90
Decrease in Trade payables (2.834.63) 425.28
Decrease in Short Term Provision of Gratuity Society & )
Council Commission, Arrear of officials . {168.94) {1.945.07) {633.56) {1.069.92)
Operating profit before tax (2,708.12) {4,074.71)
Taxes Paid
Net cash flow from operating profit {2,708.12} {4,074.71)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
{Purchase)/Sale of fixed Assets (1,403.97) {70.63)
Govt. Grant recelved for modification of Plant
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Subsidy received from Govt. of U.K, For cane price 3,800.00 3.638.82
Subsidy received from Govt. of U.K. For Govt. Gurantee Fee
2020-21 - 100.97
Increase in Cash Credit Limit 1,069.43 1,235.05
Govt. Grant received for modification of Plant 950.57
Term Loan repaid to U.S.N.D.C.B. - 5.820.00 - 4,874.84
Net Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,707.91 729.50
Opening balance of cash or cash Equivalents 2,582.89 1,853.39
Closing balarce of cash or cash Equivalents 4,290.80 2,582.89
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 24 - -
{Notes attached there to form an integral part of Profitand Loss Account)
For and on behaif of Board KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LTD
- CiN: U15421UR19725GC003513
. L
L
{SH. arfdeyl {Harsh Tiwari) [Trilok Sin, rtolia) {UDAYRAT SINGH }
“DIRECTOR

C.F.0. CORMPANY SECRETARY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

As per our Repodﬁ]}c‘w 3ttt
£y :
FOR M/s MANQJ V, TS}% .
Firm Reg. No: Q10155C
Chartered Accountants
CA MANOI JOSHI
Partner

Membership No, 025757

UBIN:  24025757BJ2XMIZ004
PLACE: HALDWANI
Dated: 19/09/2024

PLACE: DEHRADUN
DATED: 19/09/2024

PLACE: RUDRAPUR
DATED: 19/09/2024



KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024

1.1 Share Capital Amonut in Lakh Rs.
Sr. . as at as at
No Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
1 |AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 100/- each. 2,000.00 2,000.00
3000-9% (Free of company's tax but subject to deduction of tax at source)Redeemable cumulative 20.00 20.00
preference shares of Rs, 1000/-each. ’ ’
2,030.00 2,030.00
2 [(ISSUED
1840635 Equity share of Rs.200/- each 1,840.64 1,840.64
{ 2023-24 : 1840635 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/~ each) 1,840.64 1,.840.64
3 |SUBSCRIBED
1799042 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/-each 1,799.04 1,799.04
(2023-24 ; 1799042 equity shares of Rs.100/-each ) 1,799.04 1,799.04
4 |PAIDUP
1798643 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- 1,798.64 1,768.64
{2023-24: 1798543 Equity shares of Rs.100/-each ) 1,798.64 1,798.64
Total in lakh Rs. 1,798.64 1,798.64

1.2 The reconciliation of the number of shares issued is set out below:-

Sr, Particulars Equity Shares

No. Nurmber Amount
Shares issued at the beginning of the year 18,40,635 1,840.64
Add: Shares Issued during the year - -
Less: Shares bought back during the year - -
Shares issued outstanding at the end of the year 18,40.635 1,840.64

1.3 The reconciliation of the number of shares subscribed is set out below:-

Sr. Particulars Equity Shares

No, Number Amount
Shares subscribed at the beginning of the year 17,99,042 1,799.04
Add: Shares subscribed during the vear - -
tess; Shares withrawn back during the year - -
Shares subscribed at the end of the year 17,899,042 1,799.04

1.4 The reconciliation of the number of shares paid up Is set out befow:-

Sr. Particulars Equity Shares

No. Number Amount
Shares paid up at the beginning of the year 17,098,643 1,798.64
Add: Shares paid up during the year - -
Less: Shares withrawn back during the year - -
Shares paid up at the end of the year 17,098,643 1,798.64

1.5 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding in respect of shares issued and share Subscribed is set out

below:-
Sr. Particulars Equity Shares
No. Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 41,593 41.59
Add: Shares Issued during the year - -
Less: Shares bought back during the year - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 41,593 41.59
1.5 Rights, preferences and restrictions:- Equity Share Capital
Repayment after settlement of Redeemable curnulative
preference shares rights,
1.7 Shares held by holding Company NA NA

R




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024

1.8 The detaifs of Shureholders holding more thon 5% shares :

Sr. as at 31.03.2024
nia Name ar the Snarenolaer
No. of Shares % held
1 |Hon'ble Governer of Uttarakhand 17,53,584 97 49
Total in lakh Rs. 17,563,584 97.49
There is no change in the equity shareholding of the company during the current year
1.9 Shares reserved NIL NIL
1.10 information of 5 years immediately preceding 31.03.2024
1 Shares alloted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without
payment in cash. MIL MIL,
2 Shares alloted as fully paid up bonus shares- NEL. NIL
2 Shares bought back- NIL NIL
1.11 Terms of any securities convertible- NA, NA
1.12 Cails unpaid- NIL I
1.13 Forfeited Shares- NIL NIL

2 Reserve & Surplus:- Other reserve (Molusses Storage facility reserve)

{Amount in Lakh Hs.)

Sr.

No Particulars as at 31.03.2024{ as at 31.03.2023
1 [Molasses storage facility reserve fund
Balance brought forward from previous year 18.63 17.71
Add:Provision during the year 0.89 0.92
Less: Expenses ralated - .
Total in lakh Rs. 19.52 18.63

Note -i The company has created this reserve as per directive of the State Govt, in 1989 for the preservation and maintenance of
the adequate storage facility of Molasses. The company transferred the fund In this reserve @ rate prescribed in the notification.

2.1. Reserve & Surplus:- Profit & toss Account

{Amount in Lakh Rs.}

Sr. Particulars As at As at
No 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
1 |Surplus {Profit & Loss Account])
Balance brought forward from previous year (30,770.82) (29.432.67)
Less:
Provision for Income Tax - -
Provision {for Interest on Income Tax - -
Add : Profit for the period 427.16 {1,331.15)
Total in lakh Rs. {20,343.66) {30,770.82)
3. Govt Grant for Modification of Plant,
Sr. . As at As at
No Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
1 |Govt. Grant/Ad for Modification of Plant 950.57 -
Total in lakh Rs. $50.57 -




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024

4. Long Term Borrowings

{Amount in Lakh Rs.}

:l:; Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 3.03.2023
1 |Term Loan
i} {SECURED - -
i} FUNSECURED - -
2 |Loan from Releated Parties
a) |Loan received from Uttarakhand Govt. 300.00 300.00
(All loan are unsecured . The detail of each ioan is given at the note 3.1)
Total int lakh Rs. 300.00 300.00
5. Short Term Borrowings
Sr. . As at As at
;
No Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
1 jLoan Repayable on Demand {Working Capital Loans}
- From Bank { Fully secured against stock.)
{a) |Cash Credit account with U.S. Nagar District Co-operative Bank Ltd, Kichha (Non scheduled 4,038.27 3,052.22
Bank)
(The Bank has sanctioned cash credit against ptedgeing of Sugar stock in our Godown.}
{by {State Bank of India, Kichha. 7212 {11.26)
(The overdraft facility sanctioned against the ptedge of FDRs )
Total in {akh Rs. 4,110.39 3,040.96
6.Trades Payable
Se. Particulars As at As at
No 31.03.2024 31.03,.2023
1 {Cane Price payable 3,809.74 6,607.41
2 [Creditors for Material and Supplies: 37.10 74.06
Total in lakh Rs. 3,846.84 6,881.47
Trading payables aging schedule
Particulars as oa 31-03-2023 Less than@ { & m. fo 1 1-2 Year 2-3 Year More years
month Year
(i) MSME 10.20 - - - -
(i} Others 3832.88 2.37 0.03 1.36 -
{iliy Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Olhers - - - - -
7. Other Current Liabilities
Sr. . As at
No Particulars 11.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
1 [Current Maturity of Long Term debt 11,631.69 11,631.69
2 linterest accured and due to Uttarakband Govt. 24,214.39 22,373.30
3 |Other liabilities 888.33 1,105.35
4 {Income Tax Payable {MAT} 65.57 -
Total in lakh Rs. 36,799.98 35,116.34

Note -: The Company has borrowed from time to time to meet its short term as well as long term requirements from State Government and
Co-operative Bank. However, company has failed/defaulted in payment of interest to the State Government on becoming its due. It has
also defaulted in payment of installments due of the Differential Cane Price loan horrowed from the State Government, The principal

ount along with interest accrued and due but not paid to the State Government is reflected under the head “Other Current Liabilities®.

-
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KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024
7.1 Current Maturlty of Long Term debt

{Amount in Lakh Rs.)

r. .
:lo Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03,2023
1 {Loan received from Uttarakhand Govt, 11,631.69 11,631.69
{All loan are unsecured . The detail of each loan is given at the note 3.1. Due to financial
constraint, the Company defaulted in repayment of loan and interest on due date to Uttarakhand
Govt. )
Total in lakh Rs. 11,631.69 11,631.89
7.2 Interest accrued & due on loans to Uttarakhand Govt,
Sr. . As at
No Particulars 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
1 [Interest accrued thereon on loans from Uttarakhand Govt. 24,214.39 22,379.30
{All foan are unsecured . The detail of each ioan is given at the note 3.1 Due to financial
constraint, the Company defaulted in repayment of loan and interest on due date to Uttarakhand
Govt. interest accrued and due are shown under other current liabilitias.,)
8. Short Term Provisions
Sr, As at
No Particulars 31.03.2024 | ASat31.03.2023
1 |Gowt. Guarantee fee 253.77 223.25
2 |Gratuity Premium- Contributary schema 26.26 82.39
3 |Provision for Arrear of Salary & Wages of officials 394.60 400.00
4 |Provision for Leave entashment 42.95 76.99
S [Provision for Gratuity of Gadarpur Staff{Past period) 578.77 -
6 [Provision for Doubtful Assets 0.82 -
7 |Shart term provission for Electricity Security 1043 4,71
& |Short tarm provission for selling commission 23.25 16.34
Total in {akh Rs. 1,333.85 803.68
Non current Assets

9. Property, Plant & Equipment

Tangible Assets{Net Block) {Amount in Lakh Rs.}
Sr. As at
No Particulars 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
1 |Land {Lease Hold) * - -
2 |Building 108.06 99.22
3 {Plant & Equipment 1,618.38 208.12
4 |Furniture & Fixtures 2,20 277
5 |vehicles §.09 8.25
6 |Office Equipmant .88 1.07
7 |Others 28.26 15.17
Total in Jakh Rs. 1,663.87 334.60
* Leasehold rights has been renewed for a period of 30 years upto the year 2047.
9.1 Detail Property, Plant & Equipment chart Annexed at 9.1
10. Non Current Investments
Sr. . As at
No Particulars 31.03.2024 As af 31.03.2023
{a) |investment in equity thstruments - -
{i} | N3C [Piedged with Government Authority) 0.02 0.02
Total in lakh Rs. 0.02 0.02
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KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024

11, Inventories

{Amount in Lakh Rs.)

Sr. As at
Particul .03,

No articulars 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
A {RAW MATERIAL SUGAR CANE AT PURCHASE PRICE - -
B |LOWER OF COST OR NET REALIZABLE VALUE
1 [Finished Sugar 10,475.74 11,567 .48
2 |Sugarin process 4.13 174.01
3 |Brown Sugar 81.76 .

AT NET REALISABLE VALUE
4 |Molasses 973.94 1,089.01
5 |Molasses in process 1.87 35.68
6 |Bagasse 3.50 18.90
C |AT WEIGHTED AVERAGE COST
7 [Other stores & spares parts 244.55 205.62
8 |Loose Tools. 1.45 1.42
Total in lakh Rs. 11,785.94 13,092.12
12, Trade Receivables
As at
Sr. No Particulars 31.03.2024 As at 31,03.2023
a} Unsecured, Considered Good -
1 |Qutstanding for more than six months 51.58 85.74
2 |Others - -
bl Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
1 |Outstanding for more than six months - -
Less Provision - -
2 {Others
Total in lakh Rs, 51.56 85.74
Trade Receivables aging schedule for trade receivable outstanding
{Particulars as on 31.03-2024 Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment
hessthang T6 m&‘:: " 1-2vear 2.3 Year > 3 Years
{h Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered gaod 18.22 0.34{ 1.67 17.81 13.52
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtful " - - - -
{ifiy Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered good - - - - -
{iv} Disputed Trade Recelvables - Considered doubtful - - - - -
13. Cash & Cash Equivalent
sr. . As at
It .

No Particulars 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

A- |Cash-in-Hand
Cash Balance 0.58 .83
Sub Total (A} 0.56 0.83

B- |Bank Balance

{A) |with Scheduled Bank
{i} |in Current account 251.01 29,92

PNB : Rs. 436478.37
SBI : Rs,24663163.29
BOB: 1783.50
& Cont...,

\\‘ﬁ.'




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024

13. Cash & Cash Equivalent, .. ..... Cont,

{Amount in Lakh %)

Sr.

Particulars
No

As at
31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

{ii) State Bank of India {In fixed deposit including interest accrued
theron)

£} FDR pledged with SBI Rs. 71117519/- for overdraft facility.

i) FDR pledged withRegistrar Genreal Hon'ble High Court
Uttarakhand Rs. 677430/-

tii) FDR pledged with Bank for Bank Guranteeof Rs. 100000/~
with Polluation Contral Board. Current value Rs, 213736/~
tv)Fixed deposit, with State Bank of india for relief resarve
fund. Current value Rs. 1374327/-

{8) |with Non Schedyled Bank :

(a) |In Current account

{i) With U.S. Nagar Distt. Co-op. Bank Ltd. For Cane Price Account.
(Maximum autstanding bafance at any time during the year
2023-24 Rs, 144913464/

1) ]With U.5. Nagar Distt. Co-op. Bank Ltd. For Cane Transporiation Afc.
(Maximum outstanding balance at any time during the year
2023-24 Rs. 7643156.10/-)

(iit) [with LS. Nagar Distt. Co-op. Bank Ltd. Current AfciNo. 29
{Maximum outstanding balance at any time during the year
2023-24 Rs.201262278.77)

(v} [With U.5. Nagar Distt. Co-op. Bank Etd, Society & Councll
Commission A/c No.001535003100004

{Maximum cutstanding balance at any time during the year
2023-24 Rs. 6813436/-)

{v] |With Kurmanchal Nagar Sahkar| Bank Ltd.

{Maximum outstanding balance at any time during the year
2023-24 Rs. 17040361.05/-)}

{vi) |Axis Bank

{Maximum outstanding balance at any time during the year
2023-24 Rs. 1994300.58)

{vii) [HDFC Bank

{Maximum outstanding balance at any time during the year
2023-24 Rs.218160745.26/-)

(b} |In fixed deposits with

(1) {With U.S, Nagar Distt. Co-op. Bank in fixed deposit ibcluding
interest accrued thereon{Maximum outstanding balance at
any time during the year 2023-24 Rs. 135393183/-)

(i} |With Kurmanchal Bank in fixed deposit including interest
accrued thereon {Maximum outstanding balance at any time
during the year 2023-24 Rs. 713364/}

{iii} |With HDFC Bank in fixed deposit including interest accrued
therean (Maximum outstanding balance at any time during
the vear 2023-24 Rs. 30683977/}

{c} |With Post offfice :

In Saving account (pledge with Govt.)

{d) |Interest Accrued an FORs

733.83

007

G.09

202,74

0.01

0.32

0.04

47.47

1.977.12

7.56

1,032.59

0.02
37.37

721.10

19.99

0.02

143.01

0.01

0.01

0.02

0.08

1,353.93

7.13

306.84

0.02

Sub Total (B

4,280.24

2,582.06

Taotal inlakh Rs. [A +B]

4,250.80

2,582.89

13.1 Al the Vixed Deposits with the various bankers as stated above represent net reafisal
of Balance Sheet, and as reconcile with the balace certificate received from chem..

ble vahie with the Interest Accured (Net of TDS) on the date




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024

14. Other Current Assets

{Amount in Lakh %)

;'; Particulars 3 1335 : ;2 4 As at 31.03.2023
1 jinterest accrued on other deposits 5.87 5.87

2 |Advances receivable in cash or kind 300.67 302.43

3 [Advances to Uttarakhand Shakari Chini Mills Sangh Ltd. 261.91 218.04

4  |Administrative charges on Malasses 0.61 4.82

5 |Security/ trade Deposit 20.53 831

6 |Income Tax deducted collected at source 21.55 7.89

7 |Prepaid Expenses 6.36 6.30

8 |MAT Credit 405.44 339.87
Total in lakh Rs, 1,022.94 893.53

[N




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024

15. Revenue from Operations

{Amount in Laldh Rs.)

:"c" Particulars Asat 31.03.2024 | As at31.03.2023
Finished Product
1 [Sugar 14,272.95 14,877.04
By Product
2 |Molasses 1,701.69 1,512.92
3 |Bagasse 2.74 -
4 |Press Mud 35.68 45.38
16,013.06 16,435.34
Total in lakh Rs. 16,013.06 16,435.34
16. Other Income
::; Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
1 [Miscellaneous Receipts 0.01 -
2 |Farm Rent 11.80 11.61
3 |5afe of Tender Form 3.45 2.96
4 1Sale of Scrap 254.20 0.89
5 [Sale of Tree 1.65 -
& |Rent Received 0.81 -
7 |Other interest {incfuding FDR & Post office saving account } 172.20 73.62
8 |lnterest on Income Tax refund . “ -
9  |Buffer Stock Claim Received 32.57 19.59
10 [Export sugar claim 2019-20 - 523.69
11 |Dwmages Recovered 9.90 275
12 Miscellaneous Sale 1.28 4.25
13 |Unclaimed Credit Batance Written off 0.08 -
14 t5hort term provision for Expenses written off 471 -
15  [Security Money Forfeited 0.12 0.40
Total it lakh Rs. 492.89 640.06

17. Cost of Material Consumed

Sr.

No Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As af 31.03.2023
a) [ RAW MATERIALS AND STORES CONSUMED
1 [Cost of Sugar Cane 11,280.05 15,328.66
2 {Other Direct incidental charges - 313.37 449.65
3 |Packing Material 108.43 172.07
4 [Other Consumable Stores 117.46 163.19
5 |Society & Council Commission 165.43 308.17
6 {Store Freight & Incidental Charges 18.08 14,87
Total in lakh Rs. 12,002.82 16,526.61

Note -: Other consumable stores included rthe cost of chemicals which are necessitated for the processing of caw

material to finished goods.




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024
18. Change in Inventories

[Amount in Lakh Rs.)

:'; Particulars As at 31.03.2024 | Asat31.03.2023
1 [Inventories {at close)
Finished Sugar 10,475.74 11,567.48
Sugar in Process 4.13 174.01
Brown Sugar 81.76 -
Molasses 973.94 1,089.01
Molasses in Process 1.87 3568
Bagasse 3.50 18.90
Sugar Cane - -
11,540.94 12,885.08
2 [inventaries {at commencement}
Finished Sugar 11,567.48 10,927.99
Sugar in Process 174.01 109.67
Molasses . 1,089.0% 1,173.24
Molasses in Process 35.68 31.74
Bagasse 18.90 23.97
Sugar Cane - 12.01
12,885.08 12,278.62
Totalin lakh Rs. 1,344.14 (606.46)]

19. Employment Benefit Expenses

;L Particulars As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2023
1 |Directors Remuneration 19.67 17.17
2 |Salary & Wages including retaining allowance 1,860.66 1,835.73
3 |Satary & wages towards out source man power agency 560.21 547.33
4 |Workmen & Staff Welfare 53.81 52,52
5 |Contribution to provident fund 172,75 181.77
6 |Contribution towards pension fund 3487 40.65
7 |Contribution to Employees Deposit Link Insurance Fund 2.76 3.17
8 [Retirement Gratuity 668.59 179.66
9 |Provision for Arrears of officials - -

Total in lakh Rs. 3,373.12 2.958.00
20. Financial Cost

:a:: Particulars As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2023
1 [interest on Loans From Bank 202.87 152,95
2 [Other Interest on Unsecured loan From U.K. Govt. 1,835.00 1,8635.09
3 |interest on income tax - 27.02

Total in takh Rs. 2,037.96 2,015.06

21. Depreciation & Amortised Cost

;:; Particulars As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2023
1 [Depreciation 74.70 34.32
Total in fakh Rs. 74.70 34.32

\ 21.1 Detail Property, Plant & Equipment chart Annexed at 9.1

\§.



KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024

22, Other Expenses

{Amount in Lakh Rs.)

:’; Particulars As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2023
1 |Power and Fuel 22504 293.04
2 [Provision for Govt. Guarantee fee 30.52 17.12
3 |Mnlasses Storage Facilities reserve Fund 0.89 0.92
4 ISelling Expenses ( including brokerage) 94.01 99.97
5 |insurance 13.45 21.76
6 [Cane Development Expenses 12.30 9.95
7 |Rates & Taxes including Licence fee 2.85 242
8 |Rent for Cane out centers 2.25 2.19
9 |Repair and Maintenance- Building 89.75 44.88
16 [Repair and Maintenance- Machinery 489.86 576.86
11 [Repair and Maintenance-Other Repairs 6.44 297
12 [Travelling Expenses

i) Executive Director 0.31 0.17

iy Others 262 2.23)

iii} Conveyance Expenses 0.33 0.01
13 Statutory Auditors Remuneration:

i} Audit Fee 0.30 0.30

i) Tax Audit Fee 0.15 0.15
14 |Cost Audit Fee 0.20 0.201
15 [Entertainment and Guest House Expenses 0.76 2.83
16 |Vehicte Running Expenses 1317 10.00
17 |Legal Expenses 243 1.07
18 |Advertisement 4.92 4.65
19 |Audit other Exp, 0.05 G.05
20 |Bank Charges 0.39 0.29
21 {Postage and Telephone 2.25 2.14
22 |Printing and Stationery 4.84 4.31
23 [Books and Periodicals 0.01 0.17
24 |Filing fee 0.32 0.57
25 |General Stores cansumed 1.55 1.34¢
26 {Sundries 1.44 1.45)
27 [Expenses incurred on pollution Control 12.09 11.82
28 [Computer and Software Expenses 3.13 2.804
29 |CCTV Expenses 2.33 -
30 jUttarakband Sugars Adm. Exp, 63.37 69.52
31 [Meeting & Conference expenses 2.22 213
32 |Professional Expenses 8.18 8.98
33 |C.G.5T. Expenses - 1.07
34 I5.G.5.T. Expenses - 1.07
35 |CSR Exp. - 10.80
36 |Boiler Ash Removal Exp. 4.86 7.29]
37 |Penalties 1.50 -
38 [Provision for doubtfu! Assets written off 0.82 -

Total in {akh Rs. 1,101.90 1,219.50




KICHHA SUGAR COMPANY LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ending 31st March, 2024

23. Exceptional items (Prior Period Items} F.Y. 2023-24

{Amount in Lakh Rs.X)

Sr. No Particulars As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2023
1 Prior year expenses Dr. 98.98 8.37
2 income Pertaining to Earlier Years Cr. 154.83 109.06
Net Expenses 55.85 100.69]

23.1 Extra ordinary ttems F.Y. 2023-24

{Amount in Lakh Rs.X)

Sr. No Particulars As at 31.03.2024 | As at 31.03.2023
1 Subsidy received for cane price 2022-23 season from Govt. Of 3,800.00 3,538.82
Uttarakhand
2 Subsidy received from UK Govt. for Govt. Guarantee fee B 100.97
2020-21
Total in fakh Rs. 3,800.00 3,639.79

Note -: The company has treceived government subsidy of Rs. 380000000/ for Cane price payment for cane purchase for the
Season 2022-23 and the same has been shown as income under “Extra Ordinary [tems” during the yeat uvnder audit,




